ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
February 18, 2008
8:36 a.m
MEVMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair

Representative Kyl e Johansen (via tel econference)
Representative Craig Johnson (via tel econference)
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 134

"An Act relating to conservation and protection of wld sal non
production in drainages affecting the Bristol Bay Fisheries
Reserve; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 134

SHORT TI TLE: PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

02/ 14/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 07 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 28/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
02/ 28/ 07 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 02/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
03/ 02/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 05/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
03/ 05/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

05/ 09/ 07 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
05/ 09/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

05/ 09/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 24/ 07 (H FSH AT 4:30 PM Newhal en

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -1- February 18, 2008



09/ 24/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 24/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 25/ 07 (H) FSH AT 2: 00 PM Naknek

09/ 25/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 25/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 26/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AMDi I | i ngham
09/ 26/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 26/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 18/ 08 (H) FSH AT 8: 30 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

ADAM BERG, St af f

to Representative Bryce Edgnon

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provided testinony on HB 134, and responded
to questions on behalf of the bill sponsor, Representative
Edgnon.

DAVI D CHAMBERS, Ph.D., President

Center for Science in Public Participation

Bozeman, Mont ana

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided testinony and responded to
guestions on HB 134.

BRI AN KANE, Att orney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions on HB 134.

ED FOCGELS, Director

O fice of Project Managenent & Permitting

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided testinony and responded to
gquestions on HB 134.

SCOTT THORSEN ( ph)
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 134.

MARTHA CROW

Dougl as, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 2- February 18, 2008



MATTHEW NI COLAI, Presi dent

Calista Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 134.

TREFON ANGASAN
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 134.

RALPH ANGASAN SR., President

Al aska Peni nsul a Corporation (APQC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 134.

DAN DUNAVAY
DI li ngham Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

KAREN CURRY

Far Bank Enterprises

Bai nbri dge, Washi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

ROBERTA HI GHLAND
Homer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134,

FRANK WOODS

Bristol Bay Native Association (BBNA)

D |'lingham Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

TERRY HCEFFERLE

Nunant a Aul ukest a

DI Iingham Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

THOVAS TI LDEN, Chi ef

Curyung Tribal Counci

Choggi ung Limted

D |li ngham Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

JEREM AH M LLEN, Field Representative

Al aska W derness League (AW)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 3- February 18, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

GEORCE MATZ

Cook Inlet Alliance

Kachemak Bay Conservation Society

Hormer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

KONRAD SCHAAD
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

MARK MUNRO
Hormer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

JOE FAI TH
Di|I'lingham Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

BRI AN KRAFT

Trout Unlimted

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Conmittee on

Fisheries neeting to order at 8:36:07 AM Represent ati ves
Seat on, Edgnon, Hol nmes, and LeDoux were present at the call to
or der. Representatives Johnson (via teleconference) and

Johansen (via teleconference) arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 134- PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER

8:36:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act relating to conservation and
protection of wild salnon production in drainages affecting the
Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve; and providing for an effective
date. "

[ The motion to adopt CSHB 134, Version 25-LS0381\M Kane,
2/ 22/ 07, was left pending at the 2/28/ 07 neeting.]

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 4- February 18, 2008



CHAI R SEATON provided sone of the history of the bill, including
the field hearings, and explained that Version O is a result of
the field hearing testinonies.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to adopt Version 25-LS0381\0O Kane,
1/ 22/ 08, as the working docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES obj ected for di scussion.
8:39: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON, sponsor of HB 134, said that public
testimony in Bristol Bay identified two comon thenes: the
overriding concern that no harm should cone to the watershed no
matter the feelings toward Pebble Mne, and the |lack of econonic
opportunities for individuals and communities in the region. He
poi nted out that everyone who testified wants to keep the waters
clean and the subsistence and comrercial fisheries intact. He
noted that although many people support the concept of HB 134,
they have concern for any unintended consequences of the bill
specifically related to econonic devel opnent. He reported that
he worked with his staff to incorporate these public concerns
into Version O

8:42:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON then turned to the major changes to the
bill. Beginning with Section 2, he explained that all of the
exenptions have been renoved and the prohibitions and penalties
will only apply to sulfide mning operations in the Bristol Bay
Fi sheries Reserve, not any jurisdictions outside this reserve
He explained that there will be fines of up to $1 mllion per
day for damage from "sulfide mning operations” [defined in
Section 2, lines 25-27] to the "anadronous waters of the Bristol

Bay wat ershed” [defined in Section 2, lines 22-24].

8:46: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON summarized Section 3, which requires a
resolution of |egislative approval for any oil, gas, or mning
activity in the Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve. He expl ai ned
that he has determ ned through his discussions with Legislative
Legal Services that this is not special interest |legislation
because the bill deals with the statutorily designated Bristol
Bay Fisheries Reserve. He opined that HB 134 does not

constitute a "takings,"” which he defined as a government action
that dimnishes a |easeholder's property right, because the

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 5- February 18, 2008



courts have clearly stated that exploration rights are separate
from devel opnent rights.

8:49: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX related her understanding that sulfide
mning is not allowed unless the legislature finds this wll
cause no danger to the fishery.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON not ed hi s agreenent.
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired whether Section 2 prohibits

mning, and if it is possible to mne wthout wthdraw ng,
di verting, or punping water.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON specified that the intent is not to
prohi bit m ning. However, whether this bill does prohibit
mning by virtue of the penalties for danmaging anadronous
streans is a policy question that is central to the bill. He

expressed interest in the [mning] industry's point of view

REPRESENTATI VE  LEDOUX  asked i f channel i ng, danmm ng, or
rel ocating is always defined as damagi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON stated that Section 2, lines 9-12, uses
exi sting ADF&G | anguage from AS 16. 10. He further explained
that Section 2, lines 13-16, include ternms his staff conpiled to

give additional neaning to |lines 9-12. He allowed that sone of
these ternms nay be recogni zed to have uni ntended consequences.

CHAIR SEATON, referring to Section 2, lines 10-11, asked if
reinjection of water, simlar to the oil and gas process, is a
concern if it occurs within an area that is not surface overlaid
by sal non wat er.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON agreed that this is correct as long as the
reinjection is not in the proximty of an anadronous stream

8:53: 06 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked what defines the proximty to a stream and
whet her Section 2(a) applies to any water that is punped and/or
reinjected within the watershed.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON replied that the intent is for the bill to

have a very broad application, giving anadronous streans as much
protection as possible.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 6- February 18, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked for an explanation of sulfide
m ni ng.

8:54: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON responded that no definition for sulfide
mning exists in state statutes, so it is necessary to construct
a definition.

ADAM BERG Staff to Representative Bryce Edgnon, Al aska State
Legislature, said that the sponsor relied on scientists for a

definition. Legi slative Legal and Research Services asked the
sponsor to list the mnerals. He nentioned that the author of
the mneral |ist was David Chanbers.

8:55: 52 AM

DAVI D CHAMBERS, PhD, President, Center for Science in Public
Participation, said that M. Berg requested technical advice on
sul fide m ning. He said he advised the sponsor on which
mnerals to include on a list of sulfide mnerals. He explained
that gold is not a sulfide mneral, although gold does conmonly

occur with sulfide mnerals. There are many gold mnes which
have sulfide mning problens, including acid m ne drainage. He
nmentioned the Pogo and Kensington Mnes as exanples. He

explained that placer mning is gold mning in a non-sulfide
envi ronment .

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if gold should be included on this
m neral |ist.

8:58: 39 AM

DR. CHAMBERS responded that mning gold in sulfide rock materi al
could pose a threat to the fisheries. He said he did not know
if gold would be covered under this |egislation, even though the
intent appears that it shoul d. He offered his belief that this
may be a problem if gold is the only recovered mneral from a
mne. He warned that his worldwi de mning studies show there is
nore water danmage from gold mning in sulfide [mnerals] than
from any ot her single source.

8:59: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked M. Chanbers if gold can be m ned
with a sulfide operation.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -7- February 18, 2008



DR. CHAMBERS responded that it is nost typical for gold mnes to
be sul fide m nes.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX posed a scenario in which gold is left off
[this mneral list], and asked if sonmeone could mne for gold
and just call the rest "by catch".

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON said that although gold was omtted from
the mneral |ist because he did not want the bill to affect the
pl acer mners, it may have to be included in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whet her placer mners use sulfide.
9: 02: 09 AM

DR. CHAMBERS expl ained that gold is often deposited with sulfide
mnerals during a volcanic genesis. When gold deposits are
exposed by weather and noved by gravity, often downstream nost
of the sulfide mnerals are weathered away, |eaving only the
pl acer gol d.

9:03:43 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if cyanide releases any sulfides during gold
processing, and, if so, would this be exenpt under HB 134.

DR. CHAMBERS replied that it is not compbn to use cyanide in
pl acer operations, as gravity is wused for the separation
process.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON noted that cyanide is not nmentioned in the
bill.

9: 05: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked who Dr. Chanbers works for and
where there is nore information about his organization.

DR. CHAMBERS explained that the Center for Science in Public
Participation is a non-profit conpany providing technical advice
on mning, primarily to public interest groups and tribal
gover nnent s.

9: 06: 51 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 8- February 18, 2008



CHAIR SEATON referred to the Legislative Legal and Research
Services nenorandum dated February 12, 2008, which read in
part:

Wen the legislature wishes to act in an advisory
capacity, it may do so by resolution; but, when it
intends its action to have a binding effect on people
outside the legislature, it my do so only by
foll ow ng the enactnent procedures for bills.

CHAI R SEATON, referring to Section 3, asked if the use of a
resolution is appropriate.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON referred the question to Brian Kane, the
aut hor of the nenorandum

CHAIR SEATON asked M. Kane to clarify whether a positive
enactnent of a resolution is binding or advisory.

9:10: 25 AM

BRI AN KANE, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, opined
that in State v. A L.I.V.E. Voluntary (Al aska 1980), the court
clearly states that any action to bind a person outside the

| egi sl ature needs to be passed as a bill, not a resolution. He
did not know if AS 38.05.140(f) referenced in Version O Section
3, has been challenged in court. He offered his belief that a
bi ndi ng action would require a bill, not a resol ution.

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Kane whether a resolution passed by the
| egi sl ature is binding.

MR. KANE expressed his belief that the court would not rule the
resolution is binding. Based on A L.I.V.E. Voluntary, the court
has said a resolution is advisory, and a bill is binding when
regul ati ng sonmeone outside the |egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if this would beconme binding by
changing the wording from "resolution" to "bill", and would this
change create any uni ntended consequences.

MR. KANE responded that it was his belief that the change in
wordi ng would appear to neet the requirements from A L.I.V.E
Vol untary w thout any foreseeable unintended consequences. He
said the goal of the bill is to work with what is already in
statute, AS 38.05.140(f).

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 9- February 18, 2008



9:13:14 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Edgnon for a synopsis of the
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services nenorandum dated
February 12, 2008 in response to the "takings" issue.

9:14: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON responded that "resolution” is used in
Section 3 instead of "legislation" because of concern for a
"takings" claim

MR. BERG explained that the February 12, 2008 |egal opinion
states that there nmay be a "takings" claimregardl ess of Section
3.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON of fered his belief that while the opinion
from Legislative Legal and Research Services is valid, it is
|l egally conservative. He offered a "far nore extensive opinion"
on "takings" which was different from that of Legislative Lega
and Research Servi ces. This legal opinion dated January 9,
2007, "Elevating Habitat Conservation Standards in the Bristol
Bay Drainages,"” witten by WIliam P. Horn of Birch, Horton,
Bittner, and Cherot, was comm ssioned by Trout Unlimted.

CHAI R SEATON nentioned that although many |egal opinions have
been submtted, he wants to be able to address the February 12,
2008, opi nion. He remi nded the public that for those who have
al ready submtted comments, it is not necessary to do so again.
He asked that the public testinony only address Version O

9:20: 18 AM

CHAI R SEATON established that he wanted to get sonme agency
opinions and clarifications on the record before he begins wth
publ i ¢ opi ni on.

ED FOGELS, Director, Ofice of Project Mnagenment & Permtting
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), said that DNR does not
have a position on Version O but would like to nention the
effect on its | and managenent.

MR. FOGELS expl ained that the differences fromthe original bil

to Version O are: the restrictions on water wusage wthin
Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve are I|limted to only include
sulfide mning and | easable mnerals; and the activities within

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -10- February 18, 2008



the reserve are restricted only if they affect anadronous fish
wat ers. He noted that AS 41.14.870 defines anadronous fish
wat ers, which do not include tributary waters of the anadronous
waters or up surface waters. He comented that Version O nakes
unclear to DNR which waters are affected. He noted that Version
O prohibits any water usage by sulfide mnes, and given that all
m nes nust wuse sonme anount of water, Version O effectively
prohibits all sulfide mning.

MR. FOCGELS relayed DNR s belief that the term "sulfide mning"
i S vague. He expressed his understanding that because the |ist
of specified netals which define "sulfide mning" in Version O
does not include gold, then a gold m ning operation would not be
subject to this bill, even if sulfide mnerals were present in
t he ore.

MR. FOCELS noted that there are already provisions for civil and
crim nal penalties for environnental release or reporting
viol ati ons, under AS 46.03.760, AS 46.03.790, and AS 12.55.035.
He nentioned that AS 46.03.780 provides that for violations
whi ch cause the death of fish, animals, or vegetation, and/or
damages to the environment, the violator is liable to the state
for damages. He observed that Version O affects state and
Native corporation |and and water.

MR. FOGELS requested nore clarity as to which agency, Departnent

of Nat ur al Resources (DNR), Depart ment of Envi r onnment al
Conservation (DEC), or the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G), assesses these fines. He requested an explanation of
the process for soneone to defend against alleged fines, and
whet her these fines wll be set through an admnistrative,
civil, or crimnal action.

MR FOGELS commented that the reference in Section 3 to AS

38.05.135 appears to be in error, unless the bill intends to
prohibit the devel opnent of |easable mnerals. He asked how
Section 3, which is intended to apply to all mneral rights,
will work with Section 2, which effectively prohibits nost
m ni ng.

9:25: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked what is the maxi num penalty assessed
under Title 46

MR. FOCELS offered his belief that fines may range from $500 to
$100, 000 per violation and that AS 46.03.780 nmay require the

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -11- February 18, 2008



violator to restock and restore the environnent to its prior
condi tion.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON expl ai ned that the intent of the bill is
to increase the penalties for sulfide mning to be conparable to
those for oil discharge, as the current mning penalties are
insufficient to protect the anadronmous streans into Bristol Bay.

CHAI R SEATON asked for his interpretation as to whether page 2,
lines 11-12, includes the entire watershed.

MR. FOCELS expressed his belief that this would include the
entire watershed.

CHAI R SEATON said the conmttee would ask Legislative Legal and
Research Services for «clarification regarding the difference
bet ween Section 2(a) and 2(b).

9:29: 36 AM

SCOTT THORSEN (ph) said that the bill is irresponsible and
duplicative because federal and state water quality regulations
coupled with nodern mining techniqgues are already responsibly
managi ng the waters. He nentioned that the bill is a sem-
transparent attenpt to stop the Pebble M ne.

MARTHA CROW said that she supports HB 134 because it is
inportant to keep Alaska's water clean. She said she m sses
drinking water directly fromthe river.

9:33: 03 AM

MATTHEW NI COLAlI, President, Calista Corporation, said that he
has pledged to protect the conpany assets, which include the
subsurface rights. He nentioned that HB 134 does not allow
exploration of the land, which will result in a loss of shared
revenue for all the regional and village Native corporations.
He offered his belief that HB 134 wll result in a "takings"
| awsui t against the state. He nentioned that he has
participated in the devel opment of 18 federal environnental |aws
to protect Native |ands.

9:38: 05 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON said that a survey of Bristol Bay Native

Cor poration sharehol ders revealed 69 percent are in opposition
to sone fashion of the mne

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -12- February 18, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON pointed out that this |egislation inpacts
the Bristol Bay Fisheries Preserve and that the proposed Pebble
Mne site is on state | and, not Native corporation |and.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX  asked if Calista Cor poration IS
econom cally involved, or philosophically involved with respect
to Native corporation |and.

MR. NI COLAI responded that if any legislation affects Al aska
Native Clains Settlenent Act (ANCSA) defined incones, then all
Native corporations nust take a position. He explained that an
Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN) conmittee opposed the

original bill and the commttee wll nost likely reconvene to
address Version O He allowed that denial of resource
exploration on Native land wll result in an econonmc |oss and

the Native corporations need to protect their assets.
9:42: 00 AM

TREFON ANGASAN said he was opposed to HB 134 because of the
"takings" issue.

RALPH ANGASAN SR., President, Alaska Peninsula Corporation
(APC), declared that the APC opposes all versions of HB 134. He
explained that the APC |andholdings included |and near the
Pebbl e deposit. He offered his belief that HB 134 constitutes a
"taking" by not allowing the APC a determ nation of use for its
own property. If sulfide mning is prohibited in the Bristol
Bay region, the APC surface exploration agreenents wll be
negat ed, exploration activities wll cease, sharehol der jobs and
APC revenue wll be lost, and the APC wll hold the state
accountable for any financial |oss. He explained his belief
t hat the newly-formed APC subsidiary for envi ronment al
consulting will lose mllions of dollars in contracts and
contract opportunities. He said he believes the bill wll
affect the APC sharehol ders expectations that mning will bring
i mproved transportation, comrunications, and utilities to the
region, and he believes this wll result in the novenent of
young people to urban areas. He offered his further belief that
HB 134 is based on "unfounded and baseless wuntruths wth
absolutely no scientific wevidence to support the neager
findings." He opined that this bill gives the appearance that
tourism and sport fishing are nore inportant than other
sust ai nabl e economes for providing good jobs and opportunities
to local residents and businesses. He offered his belief that
HB 134 is a product of special interests.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -13- February 18, 2008



9:49:18 AM

DAN DUNAWAY said that he was raised in Alaska, graduated from
the University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) with a degree in
fisheries biology, worked during the university sunmer breaks in
Bristol Bay, and upon graduation was hired by the ADF&G He
reflected that he worked in Bristol Bay as an ADF&G sport
fisheries biologist from 1989 until his retirenent in 2002 and
he currently serves on the Bristol Bay Rural Advisory Council
for the federal subsistence program

MR. DUNAWAY encouraged "gold associated with sulfide mnerals”
to be included on the mnerals list in Version O He expl ai ned
that although he is not entirely opposed to mines, but he is
concerned with the damage from sul fide m nes. He expressed his
desire to be assured that the design and operation for any
permtted mnes is truly sufficient to protect the Bristol Bay
waters and fisheries.

MR. DUNAWAY expl ained that his studies of mning have shown that
sul fide mnes have trenmendous potential to damage the fisheries.
The ores and tailings of sulfide metal mnes, when exposed to
air and water, generate sulfuric acid that dissolves toxic heavy
nmetals which are then carried into surface and ground waters.
These toxic nmetals and conpounds kill fish, animals, and plants.
They can al so threaten human health. He cited the Flanbeau m ne
in Wsconsin, which the mning industry touts as a successfully

operated and cl osed m ne. Al though the mne closure work was
certified as conplete, he directed attention to two letters
whi ch contend nunmerous problens still exist. These letters

point out that toxic ground water is getting into the Flanbeau
Ri ver, and post-mne water quality is "far worse than acceptable
standards.” He stated that he believes the mning technology is
not yet adequate to protect [the fisheries], and that he
supports HB 134.

CHAI R SEATON opi ned that Version O prohibits any mning at all,
and asked if there are water quality standards that are
accept abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON clarified t hat Ver si on O is not

prohibiting all mning, but is addressing anadronous streans and
the penalties for danage to anadronous streans.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -14- February 18, 2008



CHAI R SEATON asked M. Dunaway to offer his interpretation of HB
134 as a bill that either addresses water quality standards or
prohi bits water usage in an area associated with a sulfide m ne.

MR. DUNAVWAY offered that his interpretation of HB 134 is not to
prohibit a mne, but instead to allow a mne with very high
standards for the protection of fish and water.

9:57: 04 AM

KAREN CURRY, Far Bank Enterprises, related that she grew up in
Fai rbanks as a "die hard salnmon angler” and she understands the
i mpact of hard rock mning to the surrounding comunities due to
the proximty of the Fort Knox Mne to Fairbanks. She offered
her belief that the fundanmental difference between the Fort Knox
Mne and the proposed Bristol Bay mning district is that
Bristol Bay is hone to the largest salnon run in the world. She
opined that HB 134 will protect the fisheries in Bristol Bay
from sulfide mning operations. She commented that the riches
of the Bristol Bay area are its renewable resources. She
offered that her conpany has Al aska sales of fishing gear and
apparel worth alnost $4 mllion, nost of which is being used in
the Bristol Bay region. The health of the Bristol Bay fishery

is inmportant to many Alaskan Natives and Non-Natives. She
expl ai ned that her conpany received huge support for its "One
Day for Bristol Bay" fundraiser. She relayed that anglers in

the Lower 48 are know edgeable about sulfide mning and the
devastation caused by slurry spills, cyanide |eaching, dam
failures, and toxic dust to watersheds in Colorado, Mbontana,

| daho, South Dakota, and New Mexico. She pointed out that when
spawni ng fish die, the fishing industry dies.

10: 01: 57 AM

ROBERTA HI GHLAND offered her strong support for HB 134, noting
that she wants to see gold included on the mneral Iist. She
said she does not believe there is the proper technology for
mning in this area. She expressed the need to review the
m ning history. She then expressed that "clean water is nore
precious than any mning developnment” and HB 134 wll protect

the Bristol Bay watershed. She opined that this is a chance to
rectify the oversight of not already giving this area long term
protection. She further opined that Al aska needs to set high
st andar ds. She nentioned that there has never been a | egal
deci sion upholding a "taking" suit. She noted that the Al aska
Conservation Alliance is advocating environnent, energy, ethics,
and econony as the keys to future decision-nmaking for Al aska.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 15- February 18, 2008



10: 04: 37 AM

FRANK WOODS, Bristol Bay Native Association (BBNA), said that
t he BBNA board declared [support for] any legislation protecting
sal non habitat. He nentioned that this bill protects the
resources of Bristol Bay for the comrercial, subsistence, and
sport fisheries because salnon is why people live in Bristol
Bay.

10: 07: 49 AM

TERRY HOEFFERLE, Nunanta Aulukestai, said that he believes
Version O has renoved nmany concerns of the |ocal comunities.
He expressed his agreenent with Version Os focus on sulfide
mning and the earlier comments of M. Dunaway. He opined that
there is not a place in the world where sulfide mning exists
that has not polluted the surrounding environnent. In fact,
many states wth Jlarge scale mning have passed citizen
initiatives which no longer allow sulfide mning. He testified
that the further a mning conpany progresses in the exploration

and permtting process, the nore |likely that the issue of
"taking" wll be raised. He suggested that the legislature
change the "taking" rules to state that there is no valid
"taking" wuntil there has been permt approval. He expressed
concern that allowing the process to take its course wll
ultimately mean expensive "taking"” litigation.

10: 13: 10 AM

THOVAS TI LDEN, Chief, Curyung Tribal Council, Choggiung Limted,
related that both Curyung Tribal Council and Choggiung Limted
have submtted resolutions against the Pebble Mne Project to

the House Special Commttee on Fisheries. Speaking on his own
behal f, he said he believes that jail tinme should be included in
Section 2(c) with the nonetary fines and penalties. He cited
exanples of nore punitive penalties in Canada. He relayed his

support for Section 1, which legislates a heightened |evel of
protection for Bristol Bay because the people of Bristol Bay
depend on the salnon. He said he believes the Al aska Federation
of Natives (AFN) represents a strong commtnent to protect the
culture and the subsistence lifestyle of Al askan Natives. Thi s
commtment to protect, he opined, is nore inportant than revenue
[from ANCSA, 43 U S.C. § 1606 (ANCSA 8 7) (1)(1)(A].

10: 20: 31 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 16- February 18, 2008



JEREM AH M LLEN, Field Representative, Al aska W/ derness League
(AW), said that AW supports protection of the Bristol Bay
fisheries in order to mintain subsistence, tourism and
commercial fishing which are vital to the region. He stated his
belief that Alaska has an obligation to protect the qualities
that shape its environnent, history, and culture, and to
mai ntain careful stewardship of its resources. He identified
the unifying element within Bristol Bay as sal non because the
salnon fishery drives the econony, culture, and ecology of the
region.

10: 24: 23 AM

GECRCE WMATZ, Cook Inlet Alliance, Kachemak Bay Conservation
Society, opined that HB 134 will not prohibit a sulfide mne if
the mne does not inpact surface or ground waters. He rel ayed
that the Cook Inlet Alliance supports HB 134 because the bil
sets a clear, unequivocal standard that |eaves little room for
Ccreative interpretation

10: 28: 49 AM

KONRAD SCHAAD inforned the conmttee that he and his sons have
been fishing in Bristol Bay for nore than 20 years. He said he
believes "that Version O puts some teeth"” into ensuring the
future of Bristol Bay. He expressed his belief that fines for
infractions are not enough [to deter infractions].

10: 30: 50 AM

MARK MUNRO related that he and his wife have fished in Bristo

Bay for 20 years. He explained that he supports Version O
because he believes the risk [frommning] is too great and that
the [mneral] resource is not disappearing. M ni ng, he opined,
should wait until the technol ogy inproves, so that mning is not
putting the sport fish, commercial fish, and subsistence
cultures at risk. He noted his agreenment with the addition of a
jail penalty and personal liability to HB 134.

10: 32: 31 AM

JCE FAITH rel ated his support for Version O He allowed that he
would like to see "gold associated with sulfide m ning" included

on the mneral |ist. He informed the conmittee that as well as
fishing, he runs a gold suction dredge. He related his
understanding that placer mning will not violate the bill,

al though operating a gold suction dredge in salnon spawning

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -17- February 18, 2008



water is a violation of the intent of the bill. He suggested

including a definition for sulfide in the bill because sulfides
seem to create the [environnental] problens. He advocated for
the inclusion of a jail penalty with the other penalties

described in the bill.

10: 36: 15 AM

BRI AN KRAFT, Trout Unlimted, related that he owns two fishing

| odges in the Bristol Bay area and he has been studying the
Pebbl e Project for nore than four years. He said that he
supports Version O because he believes the bill extends the
intent for a Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve. He noted that Trout
Unlimted has submtted to the conmttee the foll ow ng
docurents: "Predicting Water Quality Problens at Hard Rock

M nes", "DNR s Vague Statutory Standards" dated 11/15/07, and
the earlier referenced | egal nmenmorandum from WI|liam P. Horn,
dat ed January 9, 2007.

10: 39: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON clarified that the Bristol Bay Native
Corporation (BBNC) position on HB 134 is neutral. He said he
did not want to suggest by his earlier remark that BBNC had any
ot her position.

CHAI R SEATON announced that public testinony would renmain open
for Wednesday’ s neeting [2/20/08].

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Conmttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 10:41
a. m

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 18- February 18, 2008



